WEST KERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING

November 14, 2018

Cougar Room
(Access Through the Library Entrance)

5:00 p.m.

29 Cougar Court
Taft, California 93268

A. Accessibility. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the meeting
room or to otherwise participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact Sarah Criss at (661) 763-7711.
Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Governing Board to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to the meeting.

B. Obtaining Public Records. A copy of the Board packet, including documents relating to any open session item are available
to members of the public on the District website and also at the District Office. Any writings or documents that are public records
and are provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available for
public inspection in the District Office located at 29 Cougar Ct., Taft, California, during normal business hours. These documents
will be made available to the public at the same time that they are made available to a majority of the Board.

C. Language Assistance. The District welcomes Spanish and other language speakers to Board meetings. Anyone planning to
attend and needing an interpreter should call Sarah Criss at (661) 763-7711 forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting so
that arrangements can be made for an interpreter. El Distrito da la bienvenida a las personas de hable hispana a las juntas de la
Mesa Directiva. Si planea asistir y necesita interpretacion llame al (661) 763-7711 (48) horas antes de la junta, para poder hacer
arreglos de interpretacion.

D. Addressing the District Board. The Board encourages public participation and involvement. Community members will
therefore have several opportunities to address the Board. However, please respect the Board’s time and the need for efficient
board meetings. The Board also requests that comments be respectful and professional.

1. Agenda Items. If you wish to address the Board on an agenda item, please do so when that item is called.
Presentations will be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes. Time limitations are at the discretion of the Board
President.

2. Non-Agenda Items. Individuals have an opportunity to address the Board during the period set aside for Public
Comment on Items of General Interest on topics within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board not listed on the
agenda. Presentations will be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes, with a total of thirty (30) minutes
designated for this portion of the agenda.

E. Questions for the Board. Individuals with questions on District issues may submit them in writing. The Board will refer such
requests to the Superintendent, who will endeavor to respond to your questions after the meeting.

F. Placing issues on the Board Agenda. Items from the public pertaining directly to College business may be placed on the
Board agenda by submitting the request in writing to the Office of the Superintendent. The proposed agenda item will be
reviewed and placed, if appropriate, on the Board’s agenda within a reasonable period of time. Please contact the Office of the
Superintendent at (661) 763-7711 for further information.

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS

3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION




West Kern Community College District - Regular Meeting November 14, 2018

Page 2

A.
B.
C

Public Employee Appointment/Employment, Government Code Section 54957
Public Employee Performance Evaluations, Government Code Section 54957
Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/ Complaint/Reassignment,
Government Code Section 54957

Conference with Labor Negotiators (Government Code section 54957.6)

Agency Designated Representative: Superintendent/President

Employee Organizations: TC Faculty Association, CSEA Chapter #543 &
Management/Supervisory/Classified Confidential Employees

Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) or (3) of Subdivision
(d) of Section 54956.9 - 2 Potential Cases

Claim Received from Donald Thornsberry

Claim Received from Melissa Thornsberry

Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) or (3) of Subdivision
(d) of Section 54956.9

Student Discipline and Other Confidential Student Matters, Education Code
Sections 35146, 48900 et. Seq. and 48912(b)

4.  RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION; ANNOUNCE CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS

5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

6. PUBLIC COMMENT ON OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

7. GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS

8. QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

9.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES -Regular Meeting Held October 10, 2018

10. NEW BUSINESS:

Public Hearing (Items A-B)

A.

Request for Approval - West Kern Community College District Resolution No.
2018/19-03 Re: Energy Conservation Project

Request for Approval - Solar Contract with ForeFront Power

Request for Approval - Taft College Faculty Association (TCFA) English 1000 and
1500 Class Size Limits, Implementation Date January 1, 2019

Request for Approval - Taft College Faculty Association (TCFA) Dental Hygiene
Remediation Course Stipends, Implementation Date January 1, 2019



West Kern Community College District - Regular Meeting November 14, 2018

Page 3

11. CONSENT AGENDA (Items A - CC)

A.

Information Item - Annual Financial and Budget Report (CCFS-311A) for the
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Information Item - CCFS-311Q for the 1st Quarter Ending September 30, 2018
Request for Approval - Adjustments to 2018-19 Adopted Budget

Request for Approval - Revised 2019-20 Academic Calendar

Request for Approval - 2020-21 Academic Calendar

Request for Approval - Course Inactivations

Applied Technology Division

BUSN 1601 Beginning Keyboarding

BUSN 1602 Beginning Keyboarding

BUSN 1603 Beginning Keyboarding

WELD 1010 Gas Metal Arc Welding (GMAW) and Flux Core Arc Welding
(FCAW)

WELD 1020 Gas Tungsten Arc Welding (GTAW)

WELD 1030 Pipe Welding

WELD 1040 Shielded Metal Arc Welding

Math and Science Division
ENGR 1520 Statistics
ENGR 1530 Materials Science and Engineering with Lab

Request for Approval - Course Revisions

Social Science Division
ECEF 1571 Child Study and Assessment

Liberal Arts Division

MUSC 1510 Music Appreciation
SPCH 1507 Group Discussion
SPCH 1511 Fundamentals of Speech

Request for Approval - New Courses

Applied Technology Division
MGMT 1565 Professionalism and Etiquette
MGMT 1570 Diversity at Work

Request for Approval - Distance Learning Request



West Kern Community College District - Regular Meeting November 14, 2018
Page 4

Applied Technology Division
MGMT 1570 Diversity at Work
MGMT 2900 Management Capstone

Math and Science Division
MATH 1510 College Math for Liberal Arts

J.  Request for Approval - Program Inactivation

Applied Technology Division
Information Management and Technology

K. Request for Approval - Residence Hall/Dormitory and Meal Plan Fees

L. Request for Approval - WKCCD Budget Development Calendar for Fiscal Year
2018-19

M. Request for Ratification - Agreement with West Kern Adulty Education Network
Joint Powers Agreement (JPA); 7/1/18 - 6/30/19

N. Request for Ratification - MOU between West Kern Community College District
(WKCCD) and West Kern Adult Education Network (WKAEN) for Career
Technology Education (CTE) Training Under Adult Education Block Grant
(AEBG) Workforce Training Partnership

O. Request for Ratification - Amendment 01 to the Resolution Authorizing
Agreement with the California Department of Education Preschool Program;
7/1/18 - 6/30/19; New MRA is $806,433.00 (Increase of $38,504.00)

P. Request for Ratification - Amendment 01 to the Resolution Authorizing
Agreement with the California Department of Education General Child Care &
Development Programs; 7/1/18 - 6/30/19; New MRA is $709,075.00 (Increase of
$132,441.00)

Q. Request for Approval - Agreement with Serban Sound & Communications for
Purchase and Installation of Upgraded Audiovisual Equipment and One
Television to Replace End-of-Life Equipment in Four Classrooms; Total Cost
$39,379.54

R. Request for Approval - eLumen Annual License Renewal; 1/1/19 - 12/31/19;
$12,520.00

S.  Request for Approval - Contract with School Datebooks to produce Student
Planners for the 2019-2020 Academic Year; $9,404.97



West Kern Community College District - Regular Meeting November 14, 2018

Page 5

T.

AA.

BB.

CC.

Request for Approval - Dentrix Patient Management Software & Service
Agreement with Henry Schein, Inc. for the Taft College Dental Hygiene Program;
One Year from Date of Implementation; Total Cost of $9,221.69

Request for Approval - Cranium Café Online Tutoring Annual Subscription
License Renewal; 12/1/18 -11/30/19; $6,336.00

Request for Approval - Agreement with ITSavvy to Upgrade Commvault Backup
Solution from Version 10 to Version 11/ $5,625.00

Request for Approval - Synapse Laserfiche Software Support Renewal LSAP;
11/29/18 -11/28/19; $3,183.70

Request for Approval - Contract for Professional Services with Amber Anderson
for Assistance with Registration Procedures and Processes; 10/26/18 - 11-30/18;
$100/Hour, Not to Exceed $2,400.00

Request for Approval - Extension of Lease Agreement with Taft Plaza for the
Rental Space Located at 515 S. Finley Drive, Taft, CA;12/15/18 -12/14/19 with
Cancellation At Any Time with a 60 Day Notice; $1,907.00/ Month

Request for Approval - Event Rental Contract with The Fort Preservation Society
for the 6th Annual Triple Play Dinner & Auction; 1/11/19; Not to Exceed $1,200.00

Request for Approval - MTS Maintenance Contract Renewal Quote #20181011i-C;
11/28/18 -11/27/19; $1,044.75

Request for Ratification - Ellucian On Demand Subscription Library; 11/1/18 -
10/31/19; $949.00

Ratification of the October 2018 Vendor Check & Purchase Order Registers

12. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS OF GENERAL INTEREST

13.  EMPLOYMENT

A. Academic Employment (Appendix I)
B. Classified Supervisory Employment (Appendix II)
C. Confidential Management Employment (Appendix (II)
D. C(lassified Employment (Appendix II)
14. REPORTS:
A. Financial Reports (for information):

1. Revenue Accounts (Account Level 1) FY 2018/19

2. Expenditure Accounts (Account Level 1) FY 2018/19

3. Expenditure Detail of $10,000.00 or Greater, October 2018
4. Student Organization and Special Accounts, October 2018



West Kern Community College District - Regular Meeting November 14, 2018
Page 6

15.

16.

17.

18.

5. Funds Deposited in County Treasury, October 2018
6. Report of Investments at U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust Services and the
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as of 9/30/18

B. Trustee Reports
C. Academic Senate Report
D. Reports from Staff and Student Organizations

REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

NEXT MEETING DATE

The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, December 12, 2018, at
5:00 p.m.

CONTINUATION OF CLOSED SESSION (If Necessary)

ADJOURNMENT



RESOLUTION NO. 2018/19-03

FINDINGS RE: ENERGY CONSERVATION PROJECT AND
AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO ENERGY SERVICES CONTRACT
AND RELATED CONTRACTS WITH FOREFRONT POWER
(GOVERNMENT CODE 8§84217.10 ET SEQ.)

WHEREAS, the West Kern Community College District (“District”) is a public agency as that term
is defined in Government Code 84217.11()).

WHEREAS, the provisions of Government Code 884217.10 et seq. authorize a public agency to
enter into an energy service contract for an energy conservation facility upon terms in the best interest of
the District, provided that certain findings are made by the District's Board of Trustees in connection with
such an energy service contract.

WHEREAS, the scope of an energy conservation facility under Government Code §84217.11
includes alternate energy equipment for production or conversion of energy from alternate sources as its
primary fuel source, including solar.

WHEREAS, District Staff has evaluated alternative energy conservation measures at the District’s
Taft College campus to meet Taft College electrical power requirements and to reduce on-going
operational expenses for securing electrical power through PG&E.

WHEREAS, District Staff has concluded that energy conservation facilities consisting of
photovoltaic solar shade structure electrical generating systems utilizing solar power installed in parking
areas of the Taft College campus (“the ESA Project”) provides the District with the most suitable energy
conservation facility by generating electrical power electrical power to serve the Taft College campus,
resulting in operational cost savings to the District by reduction of electrical power purchases from PG&E.

WHEREAS, District staff has determined that the ESA Project scope consisting of: (i) a photovoltaic
solar generating facility with a 1.056 MW (dc) capacity at the Taft College campus provides the District
with the best value when electrical power generation and installation costs are considered.

WHEREAS, the School Project for Utility Rate Reduction (“SPURR") a California Joint Powers
Authority issued a Request for Proposals for its Renewable Aggregated Procurement (REAP) Program
(“SPURR RFP") requesting proposals for development, design, installation and operation of solar
photovoltaic generating facilities (“Solar Arrays”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SPURR RFP, ForeFront Power (“FFP") was awarded a Master
Contract for proposed pricing and terms for Solar Arrays (“SPURR Master Contract”)

WHEREAS, the terms of the SPURR RFP permit Eligible Entities to procure Solar Arrays from FFP
pursuant to the SPURR Master Contract; the District is an Eligible Entity as defined in the SPURR RFP.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SPURR Master Contract, FFP submitted a proposal to the District for
the ESA Project, consisting of an Energy Services Agreement-Solar and General Terms and Conditions
of Energy Services Agreement (collectively “Taft ESA Contract”); the Taft ESA Contract is attached hereto
as Attachment A.

WHEREAS, the Taft ESA Contract generally provides that FFP will develop, design, install, operate
and maintain the ESA Project at FFP costs, with power generated by the ESA Project cabled for Taft
College consumption at the rate of 13¢ per kWh over the 25-year term of the Taft ESA Contract (“ESA
Costs”).

WHEREAS, Attachment B hereto is a comparison of the ESA Costs with the anticipated costs for
the District to obtain PG&E electrical power service over the 25-year term of the Taft ESA Contract.

WHEREAS, Government Code 84217 et seq. authorizes the District to enter into an Energy
Services Contract for the ESA Project on terms that the Governing Board determines is in the best interests



of the District if the determination is made at a regularly scheduled public hearing, public notice of which
was given at least two (2) weeks in advance of the scheduled public hearing.

WHEREAS, on October 31, 2018 the District posted public notice of the public hearing relating to
the Taft ESA Contract for the ESA Project.

NOW THEREFORE, the following Resolutions are adopted.

RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees finds that the anticipated ESA Costs are less than the cost
for the District to obtain the equivalent electrical service to otherwise serve the Taft College campus.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees has determined that the Taft ESA Contract
incorporate terms and conditions that establish the requirements for the photovoltaic energy generating
facilities at the Taft College campus which are in the best interests of the District.

FURTHER RESOLVED, District’'s Superintendent/President, or such District employee she may
designate, is hereby authorized to execute the Taft ESA Contract and related instruments on behalf of
West Kern Community College District and to take all other measures necessary or appropriate to
implement the Energy Services Agreement and other related contracts.

On the motion of and seconded by
ROLL CALL: AYES NOES ABSTAIN

The foregoing Resolutions are adopted by the Board of Trustees of the West Kern Community College
District™ at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees this __ day of November, 2018.

President, Board of Trustees



@ TAFTCOLLEGE
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

Date: November 5, 2018
Submitted by: Brock McMurray, EVP Administrative Services ¥
Area Administrator: Dr. Debra Daniels, Superintendent/ President

Subject: Request for Approval

Board Meeting Date: November 14, 2018

Title of Board Item: Public Hearing and authorization to enter into an Energy Services
Agreement-Solar and General Terms and Conditions of Energy Services Agreement
(collectively “Taft ESA Contract”) FFP BTM Solar, LLC (“FFP”) for design, installation and
operation of an energy conservation facility consisting of photovoltaic solar power generating
shade structures (“ESA Project”) located in the Taft College parking lot.

Background:

Operational cost savings can be realized by reduction of electrical power purchases from
PG&E and meeting the District’s sustainability objectives can be realized by an energy
conservation facility consisting of photovoltaic solar shade structure electrical generating
systems utilizing solar power installed in parking areas of the Taft College campus (“the ESA
Project”).

In July, 2017, the School Project for Utility Rate Reduction (“SPURR”) a California Joint
Powers Authority issued a Request for Proposals for its Renewable Aggregated Procurement
(REAP) Program (“SPURR RFP”) requesting proposals for development, design, installation
and operation of solar photovoltaic generating facilities (“Solar Arrays”). ForeFront Power
(“FFP”) was awarded a Master Contract for proposed pricing and terms for Solar Arrays
(“SPURR Master Contract”). The terms of the SPURR RFP permit Eligible Entities to procure
Solar Arrays pursuant to the SPURR Master Contract; the District is an Eligible Entity as
defined in the SPURR RFP.

District staff has determined that the ESA Project scope consisting of: (i) a photovoltaic
solar generating facility with a 1.056 MW (dc) capacity at the Taft College campus provides the
District with the best value when electrical power generation and installation costs are
considered. FFP submitted a proposal to the District for the ESA Project, consisting of an
Energy Services Agreement-Solar and General Terms and Conditions of Energy Services
Agreement (collectively “Taft ESA Contract”); the Taft ESA Contract is attached hereto as
Attachment A. The Taft ESA Contract generally provides that FFP will develop, design, install,
operate and maintain the ESA Project at FFP costs, with power generated by the ESA Project
cabled for Taft College consumption at the rate of 13¢ per kWh over the 25-year term of the Taft
ESA Contract (“ESA Costs”).

Attachment B hereto is a comparison of the ESA Costs with the anticipated costs for the
District to obtain PG&E electrical power service over the 25-year term of the Taft ESA Contract.
Attachment B projects annual cost savings of $58,052 in the first year of the ESA Project



Page 2 of 2

operation. Taking into account the ESA Costs and anticipated increases in public electrical
utility service charges, Attachment B projects a cumulative cost savings of $2,171,849 over the
25-year term of the Taft ESA Contract.

Government Code §4217 et seq. authorizes the District to enter into the Taft ESA
Contract for the ESA Project on terms that the Governing Board determines is in the best
interests of the District if the determination is made at a regularly scheduled public hearing,
public notice of which was given at least two (2) weeks in advance of the scheduled public
hearing. On October 31, 2018 the District posted public notice of the public hearing relating to
the Taft ESA Contract for the ESA Project. A copy of the public notice is Attachment C hereto.

Recommended Action

The Superintendent/President recommends that the Board take action to adopt Resolution No.

2018/19-03 which:

1. Awards the Taft ESA Contract to FFP by authorizing District staff to execute the Taft ESA
Contract.

2. Makes findings that the anticipated cost to the District for electrical energy services
provided by the ESA Project will be less than the anticipated marginal cost to the District of
electrical costs in the absence of the ESA Project and the Taft ESA Contract.

Terms (if applicable):

Please see Attachment A ESA Contract.

Expense (if applicable):

Not applicable.

Fiscal Impact Including Source of Funds (if applicable):

Cost savings as outlined in Attachment B.

Approved: LOJ/L\L- w

Dr. Debra Daniels, Superintendent/President




Attachment A



CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

deded

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF
ENERGY SERVICES AGREEMENT

These General Terms and Conditions (“General Conditions”) are dated as of the day of , 201
and are witnessed and acknowledged by FFP BTM Solar, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ForeFront
Power”) and West Kern Commnity College District, a community college district organized and existing under the
laws of the state of California (“Purchaser”), as evidenced by their signature on the last page of this document.
These General Conditions are intended to be incorporated by reference into Energy Services Agreements that may
be entered into between ForeFront Power and Purchaser or between their respective affiliates. These General
Conditions shall have no binding effect upon ForeFront Power or Purchaser, respectively, except to the extent
ForeFront Power or Purchaser becomes a party to an Energy Services Agreement that incorporates these General
Conditions.

1. DEFINITIONS.

1.1 In addition to other terms specifically defined elsewhere in the Agreement, where capitalized, the
following words and phrases shall be defined as follows:

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled
by or under common control with such specified Person.

“Agreement” means, the Energy Services Agreement.

“Applicable Law” means, with respect to any Person, any constitutional provision, law, statute, rule, regulation,
ordinance, treaty, order, decree, judgment, decision, certificate, holding, injunction, registration, license, franchise,
permit, authorization, guideline, Governmental Approval, consent or requirement of any Governmental Authority
having jurisdiction over such Person or its property, enforceable at law or in equity, including the interpretation and
administration thereof by such Governmental Authority.

“Assignment” has the meaning set forth in Section 13.1.

“Bankruptcy Event” means with respect to a Party, that either (i) such Party has (A) applied for or consented to the
appointment of, or the taking of possession by, a receiver, custodian, trustee or liquidator of itself or of all or a
substantial part of its property; (B) admitted in writing its inability, or be generally unable, to pay its debts as such
debts become due; (C) made a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (D) commenced a voluntary case
under any bankruptcy law; (E) filed a petition seeking to take advantage of any other law relating to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, winding up, or composition or readjustment of debts; (F) taken any corporate or other
action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing; or (ii) has a petition in bankruptcy filed against it, and such
petition is not dismissed within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof.

“Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or any other day on which banking institutions in the
state of California are required or authorized by Applicable Law to be closed for business.

GENERAL CONDITIONS v.20.1



[13

Commercial Operation” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(b).

“Commercial Operation Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(b).

“Confidential Information” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.1.
“Construction Start Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 5 of the Special Conditions.
“Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions” or “CCR” means those requirements or limitations related to the Premises

as may be set forth in a lease, if applicable, or by any association or other organization, having the authority to impose
restrictions

“Delay Liquidated Damages” means the daily payment of an amount that equals the product of the Solar System Size
as set forth in Schedule 1 of the Special Conditions, times$0.250/day/kW if the ForeFront Power fails to achieve the
Commercial Operation Date by the Guaranteed Commercial Operation Date.

[1

‘Disruption Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3.

“Early Termination Date” means any date on which the Agreement terminates other than by reason of expiration of
the then applicable Term.

“Early Termination Fee” means the fee payable by Purchaser to ForeFront Power under the circumstances described
in Section 11.2.

“Effective Date” has the meaning set forth in the preamble to the Special Conditions.

[13

Energy Services” has the meaning set forth in the Special Conditions.

“Energy Services Agreement” and “Special Conditions” are the same instrument which is the Energy Services
Agreement (including the Schedules attached thereto) with an Effective Date of , 2018 entered into
between ForeFront Power and Purchaser that incorporates these General Conditions by reference.

3

‘Energy Services Payment” has the meaning set forth in Schedule 2 of the Special Conditions.

“Environmental Attributes” shall mean, without limitation, carbon trading credits, renewable energy credits or
certificates, emissions reduction credits, emissions allowances, green tags, tradable renewable credits, or Green-e®
products.

“Environmental Documents™ has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2(h).

“Environmental Law” means any and all federal, state, local, provincial and foreign, civil and criminal laws, statutes,
ordinances, orders, common law, codes, rules, regulations, judgments, decrees, injunctions relating to the protection
of health and the environment, worker health and safety, and/or governing the handling, use, generation, treatment,
storage, transportation, disposal, manufacture, distribution, formulation, packaging, labeling, or release to the
environment of or exposure to Hazardous Materials, including any such requirements implemented through
Governmental Approvals.

“Estimated Remaining Payments” means as of any date, the estimated remaining Energy Services Payments to be
made through the end of the then-applicable Term, as reasonably determined by ForeFront Power.

“Expiration Date” means the date on which the Agreement terminates by reason of expiration of the Term.

“Fair Market Value” means, with respect to any tangible asset or service, the price that would be negotiated in an
arm’s-length, free market transaction, for cash, between an informed, willing seller and an informed, willing buyer,

Page 2 of 26



neither of whom is under compulsion to complete the transaction. Fair Market Value of the System will be determined
pursuant to Section 2.4.

“Financing Party” means, as applicable (i) any Person (or its agent) from whom ForeFront Power (or an Affiliate of
ForeFront Power) leases the System, (ii) any Person (or its agent) who has made or will make a loan to or otherwise
provides financing to ForeFront Power (or an Affiliate of ForeFront Power) with respect to the System, or (iii) any
Person acquiring a direct or indirect interest in ForeFront Power or in ForeFront Power’s interest in the Agreement or
the System as a tax credit investor.

“Force Majeure Event” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.1.

“ForeFront Power” has the meaning set forth in the Special Conditions.

“ForeFront Power Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.1(a).

“General Conditions” means these General Terms and Conditions of the Energy Services Agreement, including all
Exhibits hereto.

“Guaranteed Commercial Operation Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 5 of the Special Conditions, which
date shall be extended day-for-day for Force Majeure Events and for other events outside of ForeFront Power’s
reasonable control.

“Governmental Approval” means any approval, consent, franchise, permit, certificate, resolution, concession, license,
or authorization issued by or on behalf of any applicable Governmental Authority, including any such approval,
consent, order or binding agreements with or involving a governmental authority under Environmental Laws.
“Governmental Authority” means any federal, state, regional, county, town, city, or municipal government, whether
domestic or foreign, or any department, agency, bureau, or other administrative, regulatory or judicial body of any
such government.

“Hazardous Materials” means any hazardous or toxic material, substance or waste, including petroleum, petroleum
hydrocarbons or petroleum products, and any other chemicals, materials, substances or wastes in any amount or
concentration which are regulated under or for which liability can be imposed under any Environmental Law.
“Indemnified Parties has the meaning set forth in Section 16.1.

“Initial Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2 of the Special Conditions.

“Installation Work” means the construction and installation of the System and the start-up, testing and acceptance (but
not the operation and maintenance) thereof, all performed by or for ForeFront Power at the Premises.

“Invoice Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.2.
“Liens” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(e).

“Local Electric Utility” means the local electric distribution owner and operator providing electric distribution and
interconnection services to Purchaser at the Premises.

“Losses” means all losses, liabilities, claims, demands, suits, causes of action, judgments, awards, damages, cleanup
and remedial obligations, interest, fines, fees, penalties, costs and expenses (including all attorneys’ fees and other
costs and expenses incurred in defending any such claims or other matters or in asserting or enforcing any indemnity
obligation).

“Option Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.

Page 3 of 26



“Party” or “Parties” has the meaning set forth in the preamble to the Special Conditions.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, business trust, joint stock company,
trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, firm, or other entity, or a Governmental Authority.

“Pre-existing Environmental Conditions” means any: (i) violation of, breach of or non-compliance with any
Environmental Laws with respect to the Premises that first existed, arose or occurred on or prior to ForeFront Power’s
commencement of construction at the Premises and (ii) the presence or release of, or exposure to, any Hazardous
Materials at, to, on, in, under or from the Premises that first existed, arose or occurred on or prior to ForeFront Power’s
commencement of construction at the Premises.

“Premises” means the premises described in Schedule 1 of the Special Conditions. The Premises includes the entirety
of any structures and underlying real property located at the address in Schedule 1 of the Special Conditions.

“Purchase Date” means the first Business Day that occurs after the applicable purchase date set forth in Schedule 3 of
the Special Conditions.

“Purchaser” has the meaning set forth in the preamble to the Special Conditions.
“Purchaser Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.2(a).

“Renewal Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

“Representative” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.1.
“Security Interest” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.2.

“Site Plan” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Site-Specific Requirements” means the site-specific information and requirements as may be set forth in Schedule 6
of the Special Conditions.

“Special Conditions” means each Energy Services Agreement, excluding these General Conditions.

“Stated Rate” means a per annum rate of ten percent (10%).
“System” has the meaning set forth in Schedule 1 of the Special Conditions.
“System-based Incentives” means any accelerated depreciation, installation or production-based incentives,

investment tax credits and subsidies including, but not limited to, the subsidies in Schedule 1 of the Special Conditions
and all other related subsidies and incentives.

“System Operations” means ForeFront Power’s operation, maintenance and repair of the System performed in
accordance with the requirements herein.

“Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2 of the Special Conditions.

“Term Year” means a twelve (12) month period beginning on the first day of the Term and each successive
twelve (12) month period thereafter.

“Termination Date” means the date on which the Agreement ceases to be effective, including on an Early Termination
Date or the Expiration Date.

“Transfer Time” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(a).

Page 4 of 26



1.2 Interpretation. The captions or headings in these General Conditions are strictly for convenience
and shall not be considered in interpreting the Agreement. Words in the Agreement that impart the singular
connotation shall be interpreted as plural, and words that impart the plural connotation shall be interpreted as singular,
as the identity of the parties or objects referred to may require. The words “include”, “includes”, and “including”
mean include, includes, and including “without limitation” and “without limitation by specification.” The words
“hereof”, “herein”, and “hereunder” and words of similar import refer to the Agreement as a whole and not to any
particular provision of the Agreement. Except as the context otherwise indicates, all references to “Articles” and

“Sections” refer to Articles and Sections of these General Conditions.
2. TERM AND TERMINATION.

2.1 Term; Early Termination; Milestone Dates.

(a) Term. The term of the Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for the
number of years after the Commercial Operation Date that are specified in the Special Conditions (the “Initial Term”),
unless and until extended or terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement.

) Early Termination. Purchaser may terminate the Agreement prior to any applicable Expiration Date
for any reason upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice. If Purchaser terminates the Agreement prior to the Expiration
Date of the Initial Term, Purchaser shall pay, as liquidated damages, the Early Termination Fee set forth on Schedule
3, Column 1 of the Special Conditions, and ForeFront Power shall cause the System to be disconnected and removed
from the Premises. Upon Purchaser’s payment to ForeFront Power of the Early Termination Fee, the Agreement shall
terminate automatically.

(©) Purchaser may (i) if ForeFront Power fails to commence construction by the Construction Start
Date, be entitled (as its sole remedy) to Delay Liquidated Damages not to exceed $22.5/kW, (ii) terminate this
Agreement with no liability whatsoever if ForeFront Power fails to commence construction of the System by the date
that is 90 days after the Construction Start Date, or (iii) if ForeFront Power fails to achieve Commercial Operation by
the Guaranteed Commercial Operation Date, be entitled (as its sole remedy) to Delay Liquidated Damages not to
exceed $15/kW, plus (if Installation Work had commenced at the Premises as of the date of termination) any costs
reasonably incurred by Purchaser to return its Premises to its condition prior to commencement of the Installation
Work. Further, Purchaser may terminate this Agreement with no liability whatsoever if ForeFront Power fails to
commence Commercial Operation by the date that is 60 days after the Guaranteed Commercial Operation Date. The
Construction Start Date and Guaranteed Commercial Operation Date shall be extended on a day-for-day basis if,
notwithstanding ForeFront Power’s commercially-reasonable efforts, interconnection approval is not obtained within
60 days after the Effective Date, provided that interconnection applications are submitted within 45 days of the later
of (a) the Effective Date and (b) finalization of the System layout.

22 Purchase Option. On any Purchase Date, so long as a Purchaser Default shall not have occurred and
be continuing, Purchaser has the option to purchase the System for a purchase price (the “Option Price”) equal to the
greater of (a) the Fair Market Value of the System as of the Purchase Date, or (b) the Early Termination Fee as of the
Purchase Date, as specified in Schedule 3, Column 2 of the Special Conditions. To exercise its purchase option,
Purchaser shall, not less than one hundred and eighty (180) days prior to the proposed Purchase Date, provide written
notice to ForeFront Power of Purchaser’s intent to exercise its option to purchase the System on such Purchase Date.
Within thirty (30) days of receipt of Purchaser’s notice, ForeFront Power shall specify the Option Price, and Purchaser
shall then have a period of thirty (30) days after notification to confirm or retract its decision to exercise the purchase
option or, if the Option Price is equal to the Fair Market Value of the System, to dispute the determination of the Fair
Market Value of the System. In the event Purchaser confirms its exercise of the purchase option in writing to
ForeFront Power (whether before or after any determination of the Fair Market Value determined pursuant to
Section 2.3), (i) the Parties shall promptly execute all documents necessary to (A) cause title to the System to pass to
Purchaser on the Purchase Date, free and clear of any Liens, and (B) assign all vendor warranties for the System to
Purchaser, and (ii) Purchaser shall pay the Option Price to ForeFront Power on the Purchase Date, such payment to
be made in accordance with any previous written instructions delivered to Purchaser by ForeFront Power or ForeFront
Power’s Financing Party, as applicable, for payments under the Agreement. Upon execution of the documents and
payment of the Option Price, in each case as described in the preceding sentence, the Agreement shall terminate

Page 5 of 26



automatically. Payment of the Option Price shall be in lieu of and instead of any payments as described in Section 2.2
hereof. In the event Purchaser retracts its exercise of, or does not timely confirm, the purchase option, the provisions
of the Agreement shall be applicable as if Purchaser had not exercised any option to purchase the System.

23 Determination of Fair Market Value. If the Option Price indicated by ForeFront Power in
accordance with Section 2.2 is equal to the Fair Market Value (as determined by ForeFront Power) and Purchaser
disputes such stated Fair Market Value within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice from ForeFront Power, then
the Parties shall mutually select an independent appraiser with experience and expertise in the Energy Services
industry. Such appraiser shall act reasonably and in good faith to determine Fair Market Value and shall set forth such
determination in a written opinion delivered to the Parties. The valuation made by the appraiser shall be binding upon
the Parties in the absence of fraud or manifest error. The costs of the appraisal shall be borne by Purchaser if such
appraisal results in a value equal or greater than the value provided by ForeFront Power pursuant to Section 2.3;
otherwise, the Parties shall equally share such cost.

24 Removal of System at Expiration. Subject to Purchaser’s exercise of its purchase option under
Section 2.2, upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Agreement, ForeFront Power shall, at ForeFront Power’s
expense, remove all of its tangible property comprising the System from the Premises no later than seventy five (75)
days after the Termination Date. The Premises shall be returned to the condition existing as of the Effective Date,
except for System mounting pads or other support structures on roof-mounted systems only, and ordinary wear and
tear. If the System is to be located on a roof, then in no case shall ForeFront Power’s removal of the System affect the
integrity of Purchaser’s roof, which shall be as leak proof as it was prior to removal of System (other than ordinary
wear and tear). For purposes of ForeFront Power’s removal of the System, Purchaser’s covenants pursuant to Section
7.2 shall remain in effect until the date of actual removal of the System. ForeFront Power shall leave the Premises in
neat and clean order. If ForeFront Power fails to timely complete removal of the System, Purchaser shall have the
right, at its option, to remove the System to a public warehouse and restore the Premises to its original condition (other
than System mounting pads or other support structures and ordinary wear and tear) at ForeFront Power’s reasonable
sole cost.

2.5 Conditions of the Agreement Prior to the Commercial Operation Date.

(a) In the event that any of the following events or circumstances occur prior to the Commercial
Operation Date, ForeFront Power may (at its sole discretion) provide written notice to Purchaser that it is terminating
the Agreement, in which case neither Party shall have any liability to the other except for any such liabilities that may
have accrued prior to such termination:

@) ForeFront Power determines that the Premises, as is, is insufficient to accommodate the System or
unsuitable for construction or operation of the System.

(ii) There exist site conditions (including environmental conditions) or construction requirements that
were not known as of the Effective Date and that could reasonably be expected to materially increase the cost of
Installation Work or would adversely affect the electricity production from the System as designed.

(iii) There is a material adverse change in the regulatory environment, incentive program or federal or
state tax code (including the expiration of any incentive program or tax incentives in effect as of the Effective Date)
that could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the economics of the installation for ForeFront Power and its
investors.

(iv) ForeFront Power is unable to obtain financing for the System on terms and conditions satisfactory
to it.

W) ForeFront Power has not received: (1) a fully executed a license in the form of Exhibit A of these
General Conditions from the owner of the Premises (if the Purchaser is a tenant), (2) a release or acknowledgement
from any mortgagee of the Premise, if required by ForeFront Power’s Financing Party, to establish the priority of its
security interest in the System, and (3) such other documentation as may be reasonably requested by ForeFront Power

Page 6 of 26



to evidence Purchaser’s ability to meet its obligations under Section 7.2(d)(ii) to ensure that ForeFront Power will
have access to the Premises throughout the Term.

(vi) There has been a material adverse change in the rights of Purchaser to occupy the Premises or
ForeFront Power to construct the System on the Premises.

(viii)  Purchaser has determined that there are easements, CCRs or other land use restrictions, liens or
encumbrances that would materially impair or prevent the installation, operation, maintenance or removal of the
System.

(ix) There has been a material adverse change in Purchaser’s credit-worthiness.

(b) If any of the conditions set forth in Section 2.5(a) are partly or wholly unsatisfied, and ForeFront
Power wishes to revise the information in the Special Conditions, then ForeFront Power may propose modifications
to the Special Conditions for acceptance by Purchaser. If Purchaser does not accept such modified Special Conditions,
ForeFront Power may terminate this Agreement as provided in Section 2.5(a). If Purchaser accepts such revised
Special Conditions, such revised Special Conditions shall be deemed an amendment of the Agreement, and the
Agreement shall remain in force and effect upon execution by both Parties.

3. CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND TESTING OF SYSTEM.

3.1 Installation Work. ForeFront Power will cause the System to be designed, engineered, installed and
constructed substantially in accordance with Schedule 1 of the Special Conditions and Applicable Law. ForeFront
Power shall provide Purchaser with all construction plans and designs, including engineering evaluations of the impact
of the System for Purchaser’s review. Purchaser shall review such documents and provide ForeFront with comments,
if any, within Fifteen (15) Business Days of receipt. Failure of Purchaser to provide any comments within such Fifteen
(15) Business Day period shall be deemed acceptance. Forefront and Purchaser shall use commercially reasonably
efforts to arrive at a mutually acceptable construction plan and final design (the “Site Plan”).. . . ForeFront Power
shall perform the Installation Work at the Premises between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. in a manner that
minimizes inconvenience to and interference with the use of the Premises to the extent commercially practical. In
addition to requirements of these General Conditions, Installation work at the Premises shall comply with the Special
Conditions.

32 Approvals; Permits. Purchaser shall assist ForeFront Power in obtaining all necessary consents,
approvals and permits required to perform Purchaser’s obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to
those related to the Local Electric Utility or Governmental Approval, and any consents, waivers, approvals or releases
required pursuant to any applicable contract or CCR, if applicable. Provider shall reimburse Purchaser for reasonable
costs, including administrative/clerical support costs for such assistance.

3.3 System Acceptance Testing.

(a) ForeFront Power shall conduct testing of the System in accordance with all applicable the then
current industry and best practices methods, acts, guidelines, standards and/or criteria for solar photovoltaic generating
systems similar to the System. ForeFront Power is responsible for implementing all measures and the costs thereof
necessary for compliance with such methods, acts, guidelines, standards and/or criteria at completion of Systems
installation and during the Term of the Agreement.

(b) After such testing indicates that the System is capable of providing the Energy Services, using such
instruments and meters as have been installed for such purposes, and the System has been approved for interconnected
operation by interconnection agreement with the Local Electric Utility (“Commercial Operation™) then ForeFront
Power shall send a written notice to Purchaser to that effect, and the date of such notice shall be the “Commercial

Operation Date”.

Page 7 of 26



4. SYSTEM OPERATIONS.

4.1 ForeFront Power as Owner and Operator. The System will be owned by ForeFront Power or
ForeFront Power’s Financing Party and will be operated and maintained and, as necessary, repaired by ForeFront
Power at its sole cost and expense; provided, any repair or maintenance costs incurred by ForeFront Power as a result
of Purchaser’s negligence or breach of its obligations hereunder shall be reimbursed by Purchaser.

42 Metering. ForeFront Power shall install and maintain a utility grade kilowatt-hour (kWh) meter for
the measurement of electrical energy generated by the System and may, upon prior consent of Purchaser (which shall
not be unreasonably withheld), and at Provider’s sole cost, install a utility grade kilowatt-hour (kWh) meter for the
measurement of electrical energy delivered by the Local Electric Utility and consumed at the Premises.

43 System Disruptions. In the event that (a) the owner or lessee of the Premises repairs the Premises
for any reason not directly related to damage caused by the System, and such repair requires the partial or complete
temporary disassembly or movement of the System, or (b) any act or omission of Purchaser or Purchaser’s employees,
Affiliates, agents or subcontractors (collectively, a “Purchaser Act”) results in a disruption or outage in System
production, then, in either case, Purchaser shall (i) pay ForeFront Power for all work required by ForeFront Power to
disassemble or move the System and (ii) continue to make all payments for the Energy Services during such period
of System disruption (the “Disruption Period”), and (iii) reimburse ForeFront Power for any other lost revenue during
the Disruption Period, including any lost revenue associated with any reduced sales of Environmental Attributes and
any reduced System-based Incentives, if applicable, during the Disruption Period. For the purpose of calculating
Energy Services Payments and lost revenue for such Disruption Period, Energy Services for each month of said months
shall be deemed to have been produced at the average rate over the same month for which data exists (or, if the
disruption occurs within the first twelve (12) months of operation, the average over such period of operation).

5. TITLE TO SYSTEM.

5.1 Throughout the Term of the Agreement, ForeFront Power or ForeFront Power’s Financing Party
shall be the legal and beneficial owner of the System at all times, and the System shall remain the personal property
of ForeFront Power or ForeFront Power’s Financing Party and shall not attach to or be deemed a part of, or fixture to,
the Premises. The System shall at all times retain the legal status of personal property as defined under Article 9 of
the Uniform Commercial Code. Purchaser covenants that it will use reasonable commercial efforts to place all parties
having an interest in or lien upon the real property comprising the Premises on notice of the ownership of the System
and the legal status or classification of the System as personal property. If there is any mortgage or fixture filing
against the Premises which could reasonably be construed as attaching to the System as a fixture of the Premises,
Purchaser shall provide, at ForeFront Power’s request, a disclaimer or release from such lien holder. If Purchaser is
the fee owner of the Premises, Purchaser consents to the filing by ForeFront Power, on behalf of Purchaser, of a
disclaimer of the System as a fixture of the Premises in the office where real estate records are customarily filed in the
Jurisdiction of the Premises. If Purchaser is not the fee owner, Purchaser will, at ForeFront Power’s request, use
commercially reasonable efforts to obtain such consent from such owner.

52 Environmental Attributes And System-Based Incentives. Purchaser’s purchase of Energy Services
includes Environmental Attributes, but does not include System-based incentives. System-based Incentives shall be
owned by ForeFront Power or ForeFront Power’s financing party for the duration of the Term of this Agreement.
Purchaser disclaims any right to System-based Incentives based upon the installation of the System at the Premises,
and shall, at the request and costs of ForeFront Power, execute any document or agreement reasonably necessary to
fulfill the intent of this Section 5.2.

6. PRICE AND PAYMENT.

6.1 Consideration. Purchaser shall pay to ForeFront Power a monthly Energy Services Payment for the
Energy Services provided during each calendar month of the Term as set forth in the Special Conditions.

6.2 Invoice. ForeFront Power shall invoice Purchaser on or about the first day of each month (each, an
“Invoice Date™), commencing on the first Invoice Date to occur after the Commercial Operation Date, for the Energy

Page 8 of 26



Services Payment in respect of the immediately preceding month. The last invoice shall include Energy Services
provided only through the Termination Date of this Agreement.

6.3 Time of Payment. Purchaser shall pay all undisputed amounts due hereunder within thirty (30) days
after the date of the Purchaser’s receipt of an Invoice.

6.4 Method of Payment. Purchaser shall make all payments under the Agreement either (a) by
electronic funds transfer in immediately available funds to the account designated by ForeFront Power from time to
time or (b) by check timely delivered to the location designated by ForeFront Power from time to time. All payments
that are not paid when due shall bear interest accruing from the date becoming past due until paid in full at a rate equal
to the Stated Rate.

6.5 Disputed Payments. If a bona fide dispute arises with respect to any invoice, Purchaser shall not be

deemed in default under the Agreement and the Parties shall not suspend the performance of their respective

obligations hereunder, including payment of undisputed amounts owed hereunder. If an amount disputed by

Purchaser is subsequently deemed to have been due pursuant to the applicable invoice, interest shall accrue at the

Stated Rate on such amount from the date becoming past due under such invoice until the date paid. 7.
GENERAL COVENANTS.

7.1 ForeFront Power’s Covenants. ForeFront Power covenants and agrees to the following:

(@) Notice of Damage or Emergency. ForeFront Power shall (x) promptly notify Purchaser if it becomes
aware of any damage to or loss of the use of the System or that could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the
System, (y) immediately notify Purchaser in writing if it becomes aware of any event or circumstance relating to the
System or the Premises that poses a significant risk of bodily injury/death, property damage, the environmental
damage, or System damage.

®) Governmental Approvals. While providing the Installation Work, Energy Services, and System
Operations, ForeFront Power shall obtain and maintain and secure all Governmental Approvals required to be obtained
and maintained and secured by ForeFront Power by Applicable Law. ForeFront Power is solely responsible for all
costs, fees, charges or expenses associated with obtaining, maintaining and securing such Governmental Approvals.

(c) Health and Safety. ForeFront Power shall take all necessary safety precautions with respect to
providing the Installation Work, Energy Services, and System Operations and ForeFront Power shall comply with all
Applicable Laws pertaining to the health and safety of persons and real and personal property. All work shall be
performed by licensed professionals, as may be required by Applicable Law, and in accordance with such methods,
acts, guidelines, standards and criteria reasonably accepted or followed by a majority of System integrators in the
United States.

(G)] Liens. Other than a Financing Party’s security interest in or ownership of the System, ForeFront
Power shall not directly or indirectly cause, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage, pledge, lien
(including mechanics’, labor or materialman’s lien), charge, security interest, encumbrance or claim of any nature
(“Liens”) on or with respect to the Premises or any interest therein, in each case to the extent such Lien arises from or
. is related to ForeFront Power’s performance or non-performance of its obligations hereunder. If ForeFront Power
breaches its obligations under this Section, it shall (i) immediately notify Purchaser in writing, (ii) promptly cause
such Lien to be discharged and released of record without cost to Purchaser, and (iii) defend and indemnify Purchaser
against all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs at trial and on appeal) incurred in
discharging and releasing such Lien; provided, ForeFront Power shall have the right to contest any such Lien, so long
as it provides a statutory bond or other reasonable assurances of payment that either remove such Lien from title to
the Premises or that assure that any adverse judgment with respect to such Lien will be paid without affecting title to
the Premises.

7.2 Purchaser’s Covenants. Purchaser covenants and agrees as follows:

Page 9 of 26



(a) Notice of Damage or Emergency. Purchaser shall (i) promptly notify ForeFront Power if it becomes
aware of any damage to or loss of the use of the System or that could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the
System, (ii) immediately notify ForeFront Power it becomes aware of any event or circumstance that poses an
imminent risk to human health, the environment, the System or the Premises. In the event of damage to Purchaser’s
premises caused by, or as the result of, the System, ForeFront Power shall, at its sole cost, repair said premises to the
condition existing prior to such damage.

(b) Liens. Purchaser shall not directly or indirectly cause, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any
Liens on or with respect to the System or any interest therein. If Purchaser breaches its obligations under this Section,
it shall immediately notify ForeFront Power in writing, shall promptly cause such Lien to be discharged and released
of record without cost to ForeFront Power, and shall indemnify ForeFront Power against all costs and expenses
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs at trial and on appeal) incurred in discharging and releasing such
Lien.

(©) Consents and Approvals. To the extent that only Purchaser is authorized to request, obtain or issue
any necessary approvals, Governmental Approvals, rebates or other financial incentives which are property of the
ForeFront Power under this Agreement, Purchaser shall reasonably cooperate with ForeFront Power to obtain or issue
such approvals, Governmental Approvals, rebates or other financial incentives in the name of ForeFront Power.
Purchaser shall provide to ForeFront Power copies of all Governmental Approvals and CCRs applicable to the
Premises, other than those obtained by ForeFront Power or to which ForeFront Power is a party.

d Access to Premises, Grant of License.

()] Purchaser hereby grants to ForeFront Power a license coterminous with the Term for ForeFront
Power to use and occupy portions of the Premises. During construction and installation of the System, Purchaser shall
grant ForeFront a license that permits ingress and egress to the Site, as well as a mutually agreeable location for
construction staging and laydown. Once construction and commissioning are complete and operation has commenced,
the license shall be for ForeFront’s use and occupancy of the Premises to operate and maintain the System, as well as
for its ultimate removal. The license shall extend to ForeFront’s employees, contractors and subcontractors and
access to electrical panels and conduits to interconnect or disconnect the System with the Premises’ electrical wiring;
provided, with respect to Provider’s access to the Site, such license shall be subject to conditions or limitations for the
protection of minor students that are imposed generally on commercial contractors by Purchaser or by Applicable
Law. If ForeFront Power’s financing structure requires that Purchaser enter into a license agreement directly with
Financing Party, ForeFront Power shall enter into such an agreement which shall be in a form set forth by ForeFront
Power and which contain substantially the same rights as set forth in this Section 7.2(d).

(ii) Purchaser hereby covenants that (x) ForeFront Power shall have access to the Premises and System
during the Term of this Agreement and for seventy five (75) days after termination to remove the System pursuant to
the applicable provisions herein, and (y) Purchaser will not interfere or handle any ForeFront Power equipment or the
System without written authorization from ForeFront Power; provided, Purchaser shall at all times have access to and
the right to observe the Installation Work, System Operations or System removal.

(iii) If Purchaser is a lessee of the Premises, Purchaser further covenants that it shall deliver to ForeFront
Power, a license from Purchaser’s landlord in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A of these General
Conditions.

(e) Temporary storage space during installation or removal. Purchaser shall provide reasonable and
available space at the Premises for the temporary storage and staging of tools, materials and equipment and for the
parking of construction crew vehicles and temporary construction trailers and facilities reasonably necessary during
the Installation Work, System Operations or System removal, and access for rigging and material handling.
Availability and location(s) of such space is at Purchaser’s sole discretion.

® On or before the Effective Date of the Special Conditions Purchaser shall identify and set forth in
the Special Conditions and unless previously delivered, Purchaser shall, to the extent the same are known and
available, deliver to ForeFront Power copies of all reports, agreements, plans, inspections, tests, studies or other
materials concerning the presence of Hazardous Materials at, from or on the Premises including, but not limited to,

Page 10 of 26



soil reports, design drawings, environmental reports, sampling results or other documents relating to Hazardous
Materials that have been identified or may be present on, in or under the Premises (collectively, the “Environmental
Documents”). Thereafter, Purchaser agrees to provide copies of any new Environmental Documents within ten (10)
days of receipt of same. Purchaser hereby agrees to furnish such other documents in Purchaser’s possession or control
with respect to Governmental Approvals compliance with Environmental Law or Hazardous Materials with respect to
the Premises as may be reasonably requested by ForeFront Power from time to time. The foregoing are subject to
exceptions and limitations set forth in Schedule 6 of the Special Conditions.

(® Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, Purchaser shall operate and maintain
the Premises to comply with the requirements of all applicable Environmental Laws that limit or govern the conditions
or uses of the Premises, without impairing or interfering with ForeFront Power’s construction, operation and
ownership of the System or occupancy of the Premises. In no event shall ForeFront Power have any liability or
obligation with respect to any Pre-existing Environmental Condition on, in or under the Premises, or operations or
maintenance of the Premises required to comply with Environmental Laws with respect to Pre-Existing Environmental
Conditions.

() Purchaser shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend ForeFront Power from and against all claims,
pay costs and expenses, and conduct all actions required under Environmental Laws in connection with (i) the
existence at, on, above, below or near the Premises of any Pre-existing Environmental Conditions, and (ii) any
Hazardous Materials released, spilled or deposited at, on above or below the Premises by the Purchaser.

7. REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES.

8.1 Representations and Warranties of Both Parties. In addition to any other representations and
warranties contained in the Agreement, each Party represents and warrants to the other as of the Effective Date that:

(a) it is duly organized and validly existing and in good standing in the jurisdiction of its organization,;

(b) it has the full right and authority to enter into, execute, deliver, and perform its obligations under
the Agreement;

© it has taken all requisite corporate or other action to approve the execution, delivery, and

performance of the Agreement;

() the Agreement constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against such Party in
accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by applicable bankruptcy and other similar laws now or hereafter
in effect, provided that enforcement of this Agreement against Purchaser is subject to action of the Purchaser’s Board
of Trustees to approve this Agreement in properly noticed open public meeting;

(e) there is no litigation, action, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the best of its knowledge,
threatened before any court or other Governmental Authority by, against, affecting or involving any of its business or
assets that could reasonably be expected to adversely affect its ability to carry out the transactions contemplated herein;

® its execution and performance of the Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby do not
and will not constitute a breach of any term or provision of, or a default under, (i) any contract, agreement or
Governmental Approval to which it or any of its Affiliates is a party or by which it or any of its Affiliates or its or
their property is bound, (ii) its organizational documents, or (iii) any Applicable Laws; and

® its execution and performance of the Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby do not
and will not require any consent from a third party, including any Governmental Approvals from any Governmental
Authority, that are not identified in the Special Conditions.

8.2 Representations of Purchaser. Purchaser represents and warrants to ForeFront Power as of the
Effective Date that:

Page 11 of 26



(@ Purchaser acknowledges that it has been advised that part of the collateral securing the financial
arrangements for the System may be the granting of a first priority perfected security interest (the “Security Interest”)
in the System to a Financing Party;

(b) To Purchaser’s knowledge, the granting of the Security Interest will not violate any term or
condition of any covenant, restriction, lien, financing agreement, or security agreement affecting the Premises;

(©) Purchaser is aware of no existing lease, mortgage, security interest or other interest in or lien upon
the Premises that could attach to the System as an interest adverse to ForeFront Power’s Financing Party’s Security
Interest therein;

d To Purchaser’s knowledge, there exists no event or condition which constitutes a default, or would,
with the giving of notice or lapse of time, constitute a default under this Agreement;

(e) To Purchaser’s knowledge, Purchaser has identified and disclosed to ForeFront Power the
information and materials specifically identified in Section VI, Schedule 6 of the Special Conditions;

® To Purchaser’s knowledge, the Premises is in compliance with Environmental Laws, and that
Purchaser holds and is in compliance with all Governmental Approvals required for the ownership and any current
operations or activities conducted at the Premises; and

(® To Purchaser’s knowledge, Purchaser has identified in the Special Conditions and delivered to
ForeFront Power all material reports and information concerning the presence or release of Hazardous Materials on,
in or under the Premises.

(h) Any Financing Party shall be an intended third-party beneficiary of this Section 8.2.

83 EXCLUSION OF WARRANTIES. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY
SET FORTH HEREIN, THE INSTALLATION WORK, SYSTEM OPERATIONS, AND ENERGY SERVICES
PROVIDED BY FOREFRONT POWER TO PURCHASER PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE
“AS-IS WHERE-IS.” NO OTHER WARRANTY TO PURCHASER OR ANY OTHER PERSON, WHETHER
EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, IS MADE AS TO THE INSTALLATION, DESIGN, DESCRIPTION,
QUALITY, MERCHANTABILITY, COMPLETENESS, USEFUL LIFE, FUTURE ECONOMIC VIABILITY, OR
FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM, THE ENERGY SERVICES OR ANY OTHER
SERVICE PROVIDED HEREUNDER OR DESCRIBED HEREIN, OR AS TO ANY OTHER MATTER, ALL OF
WHICH ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED BY FOREFRONT POWER.

8. TAXES AND GOVERNMENTAL FEES.

9.1 Purchaser Obligations. Purchaser shall reimburse and pay for any taxes, fees or charges imposed or
authorized by any Governmental Authority and paid by ForeFront Power due to ForeFront Power’s sale of the Energy
Services to Purchaser (other than income taxes imposed upon ForeFront Power). ForeFront Power shall notify
Purchaser in writing with a detailed statement of such amounts, which shall be invoiced by ForeFront Power and
payable by Purchaser. Purchaser shall timely report, make filings for, and pay any and all sales, use, income, gross
receipts or other taxes, and any and all franchise fees or similar fees assessed against it due to its purchase of the
Energy Services. This Section 9.1 excludes taxes specified in Section 9.2.

9.2 ForeFront Power Obligations. Subject to Section 9.1 above, ForeFront Power shall be responsible
for all income, gross receipts, ad valorem, personal property or real property or other similar taxes, assessments or
similar charges and any and all franchise fees or similar fees assessed against it due to its ownership or operation of
the System.

Page 12 of 26



9. FORCE MAJEURE.

10.1 Definition. “Force Majeure Event” means any act or event that prevents the affected Party from
performing its obligations in accordance with the Agreement, if such act or event is beyond the reasonable control,
and not the result of the fault or negligence, of the affected Party and such Party had been unable to overcome such
act or event with the exercise of due diligence (including the expenditure of reasonable sums). Subject to the foregoing
conditions, “Force Majeure Event” shall include without limitation the following acts or events: (i) natural
phenomena, such as storms, hurricanes, floods, lightning, volcanic eruptions and earthquakes; (ii) explosions or fires
arising from lightning or other causes unrelated to the acts or omissions of the Party seeking to be excused from
performance; (iii) acts of war or public disorders, civil disturbances, riots, insurrection, sabotage, epidemic, terrorist
acts, or rebellion; (iv) strikes or labor disputes (except strikes or labor disputes caused solely by employees of
ForeFront Power or as a result of such party’s failure to comply with a collective bargaining agreement); (v) action or
inaction by a Governmental Authority (unless Purchaser is a Governmental Authority and Purchaser is the Party whose
performance is affected by such action nor inaction). A Force Majeure Event shall not be based on the economic
hardship of either Party, or upon the expiration of any lease of the Premises by the Purchaser from the owner of the
Premises.

10.2  Excused Performance. Except as otherwise specifically provided in the Agreement, neither Party
shall be considered in breach of the Agreement or liable for any delay or failure to comply with the Agreement (other
than the failure to pay amounts due hereunder), if and to the extent that such delay or failure is attributable to the
occurrence of a Force Majeure Event; provided, the Party claiming relief under this Article 10 shall as soon as
practicable after becoming aware of the circumstances constituting Force Majeure (i) notify the other Party in writing
of the existence of the Force Majeure Event, (ii) exercise all reasonable efforts necessary to minimize delay caused by
such Force Majeure Event, (iii) notify the other Party in writing of the cessation or termination of said Force Majeure
Event and (iv) resume performance of its obligations hereunder as soon as practicable thereafter; provided, Purchaser
shall not be excused from making any payments and paying any unpaid amounts due in respect of Energy Services
delivered to Purchaser prior to the Force Majeure Event performance interruption.

10.3  Termination in Consequence of Force Majeure Event. If a Force Majeure Event shall have occurred
that has affected ForeFront Power’s performance of its obligations hereunder and that has continued for a continuous
period of one hundred eighty (180) days, then either Party shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement upon ninety
(90) days’ prior written notice to the other Party. If at the end of such ninety (90) day period such Force Majeure
Event shall still continue, the Agreement shall automatically terminate. Upon such termination for a Force Majeure
Event, neither Party shall have any liability to the other (other than any such liabilities that have accrued prior to such
termination).

10. DEFAULT.
11.1 ForeFront Power Defaults and Purchaser Remedies.

(@ ForeFront Power Defaults. The following events shall be defaults with respect to ForeFront Power
(each, a “ForeFront Power Default”):

@) A Bankruptcy Event shall have occurred with respect to ForeFront Power;

(ii) ForeFront Power fails to pay Purchaser any undisputed amount owed under the Agreement
within thirty (30) days from receipt of notice from Purchaser of such past due amount; and

(iii) ForeFront Power breaches any material representation, covenant or other term of the
Agreement and (A) if such breach can be cured within thirty (30) days after Purchaser’s written notice of such breach
and ForeFront Power fails to so cure, or (B) ForeFront Power fails to commence and pursue a cure within such thirty
(30) day period if a longer cure period is needed.

Page 13 of 26



(b) Purchaser’s Remedies. If a ForeFront Power Default described in Section 11.1(a) has occurred and
is continuing, in addition to other remedies expressly provided herein, and subject to Article 12, Purchaser may
terminate the Agreement and exercise any other remedy it may have at law or equity or under the Agreement.

11.2 Purchaser Defaults and ForeFront Power’s Remedies.

(a) Purchaser Default. The following events shall be defaults with respect to Purchaser (each, a
“Purchaser Default™):

6] A Bankruptcy Event shall have occurred with respect to Purchaser;

(ii) Purchaser breaches any material representation, covenant or other term of the Agreement
if (A) such breach can be cured within thirty (30) days after ForeFront Power’s notice of such breach and Purchaser
fails to so cure, or (B) Purchaser fails to commence and pursue said cure within such thirty (30) day period if a longer
cure period is needed; and

(iii) Purchaser fails to pay ForeFront Power any undisputed amount due ForeFront Power under
the Agreement within thirty (30) days from receipt of notice from ForeFront Power of such past due amount.

(b) ForeFront Power’s Remedies. If a Purchaser Default described in Sections 11.2(a) has occurred and
is continuing, in addition to other remedies expressly provided herein, and subject to Article 12, ForeFront Power may
terminate this Agreement and upon such termination, (A) ForeFront Power shall be entitled to receive from Purchaser
the Early Termination Fee, and (B) ForeFront Power may exercise any other remedy it may have at law or equity or
under the Agreement.

11.3 [Reserved]

114  Removal of System. Upon any termination of the Agreement pursuant to this Article 11, ForeFront
Power will remove the System pursuant to Section 2.4 hereof, absent any purchase of the System by Purchaser
pursuant to Section 2.2 hereof.

11. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY.

12.1  Exceptas expressly provided herein, neither Party shall be liable to the other Party or its Indemnified
Persons for any special, punitive, exemplary, indirect, or consequential damages, losses or damages for lost revenue
or lost profits, whether foreseeable or not, arising out of, or in connection with the Agreement.

122 A Party’s maximum liability to the other Party under the Agreement, shall be limited to the
aggregate Estimated Remaining Payments as of the date of the events giving rise to such liability, provided, the limits
of liability under this Section 12.2 shall not apply with respect to (i) indemnity obligations hereunder in respect of
personal injury or environmental claims, (ii) any obligation of Purchaser to pay Energy Service Payments, the Early
Termination Fee or the Option Price, and (iii) any obligation of ForeFront Power to pay for Lost Savings in accordance
with the Special Conditions, if applicable.

12. ASSIGNMENT.

13.1 Assignment by ForeFront Power. ForeFront Power shall not sell, transfer or assign (collectively,
an “Assignment”) the Agreement or any interest therein, without the prior written consent of Purchaser, which shall
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, Purchaser agrees that ForeFront Power may assign
this Agreement without the consent of the Purchaser to an affiliate of ForeFront Power or any party providing
financing for the System. In the event that ForeFront Power identifies a secured Financing Party in the Special
Conditions, or in a subsequent notice to Purchaser, then Purchaser shall comply with the provisions set forth in Exhibit
B of these General Terms and Conditions and agrees to provide such estoppels and acknowledgments as ForeFront
Power may reasonably request from time to time. Any Financing Party shall be an intended third-party beneficiary
of this Section 13.1. Any Assignment by ForeFront Power without obtaining the prior written consent and release of

Page 14 of 26



Purchaser, when such consent is required by this Section 13.1, shall not release ForeFront Power of its obligations
hereunder.

13.2  Acknowledgment of Collateral Assignment. In the event that ForeFront Power identifies a secured
Financing Party in the Special Conditions, or in a subsequent notice to Purchaser, then Purchaser hereby
acknowledges:

(a) The collateral assignment by ForeFront Power to the Financing Party, of ForeFront Power’s right,
title and interest in, to and under the Agreement, as consented to under Section 13.1 of the Agreement.

(b) That the Financing Party as such collateral assignee shall be entitled to exercise any and all rights
of lenders generally with respect to ForeFront Power’s interests in this Agreement.

() That it has been advised that ForeFront Power has granted a first priority perfected security interest
in the System to the Financing Party and that the Financing Party has relied upon the characterization of the System
as personal property, as agreed in this Agreement in accepting such security interest as collateral for its financing of
the System.

Any Financing Party shall be an intended third- party beneficiary of this Section 13.2.

13.3  Assignment by Purchaser. Purchaser shall not assign the Agreement or any interest therein, without
ForeFront Power’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
Any Assignment by Purchaser without the prior written consent of ForeFront Power shall not release Purchaser of its
obligations hereunder.

13. NOTICES.

14.1 Notice Addresses. Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement, all notices and communications
concerning the Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the other Party (or Financing Party, as the case may
be) at the addresses set forth in the Special Conditions, or at such other address as may be designated in writing to the
other Party from time to time.

142 Notice. Unless otherwise provided herein, any notice provided for in the Agreement shall be hand
delivered, sent by registered or certified U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, or by commercial overnight delivery service, and
shall be deemed delivered to the addressee or its office when received at the address for notice specified above when
hand delivered, upon confirmation of sending when sent by facsimile (if sent during normal business hours or the next
Business Day if sent at any other time), on the Business Day after being sent when sent by overnight delivery service
(Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded), or five (5) Business Days after deposit in the mail when sent by
U.S. mail.

143 Address for Invoices. All invoices under the Agreement shall be sent to the address provided by
Purchaser. Invoices shall be sent by regular first class mail postage prepaid.

14. CONFIDENTIALITY.

15.1 Confidentiality Obligation. If either Party provides confidential information, including business
plans, strategies, financial information, proprietary, patented, licensed, copyrighted or trademarked information,
and/or technical information regarding the financing, design, operation and maintenance of the System or of
Purchaser’s business (“Confidential Information™) to the other or, if in the course of performing under the Agreement
or negotiating the Agreement a Party learns Confidential Information regarding the facilities or plans of the other, the
receiving Party shall (a) protect the Confidential Information from disclosure to third parties with the same degree of
care accorded its own confidential and proprietary information, and (b) refrain from using such Confidential
Information, except in the negotiation and performance of the Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, a Party may
provide such Confidential Information to its officers, directors, members, managers, employees, agents, contractors,
consultants, Affiliates, lenders (existing or potential), investors (existing or potential) and potential third-party

Page 15 of 26



assignees of the Agreement or third-party acquirers of ForeFront Power or its Affiliates (provided and on condition
that such potential third-party assignees be bound by a written agreement restricting use and disclosure of Confidential
Information) (collectively, “Representatives™), in each case whose access is reasonably necessary. Each such recipient
of Confidential Information shall be informed by the Party disclosing Confidential Information of its confidential
nature and shall be directed to treat such information confidentially and shall agree to abide by these provisions. In
any event, each Party shall be liable (with respect to the other Party) for any breach of this provision by any entity to
whom that Party improperly discloses Confidential Information. The terms of the Agreement (but not its execution
or existence) shall be considered Confidential Information for purposes of this Article, except as set forth in
Section 15.3. All Confidential Information shall remain the property of the disclosing Party and shall be returned to
the disclosing Party or destroyed after the receiving Party’s need for it has expired or upon the request of the disclosing

Party.

152  Permitted Disclosures. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, neither Party shall be required
to hold confidential any information that:

(a) Becomes publicly available other than through the receiving Party;

) Is required to be disclosed by a Governmental Authority, under Applicable Law, including without
limitation, the Public Records Act or pursuant to a validly issued subpoena or required filing, but a receiving Party
subject to any such requirement shall promptly notify the disclosing Party of such requirement;

(c) Is independently developed by the receiving Party; or

(G Becomes available to the receiving Party without restriction from a third party under no obligation
of confidentiality.

153  Goodwill and Publicity. Neither Party shall use the name, trade name, service mark, or trademark
of the other Party in any promotional or advertising material without the prior written consent of such other Party.
The Parties shall coordinate and cooperate with each other when making public announcements related to the
execution and existence of the Agreement, and each Party shall have the right to promptly review, comment upon,
and approve any publicity materials, press releases, or other public statements by the other Party that refer to, or that
describe any aspect of, the Agreement; provided, no such publicity releases or other public statements (except for
filings or other statements or releases as may be required by Applicable Law) shall be made by either Party without
the prior written consent of the other Party. At no time will either Party acquire any rights whatsoever to any
trademark, trade name, service mark, logo or other intellectual property right belonging to the other Party.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser agrees that ForeFront Power may, at its sole discretion, take photographs
of the installation process of the System and/or the completed System, and ForeFront Power shall be permitted to use
such images (regardless of media) in its marketing efforts, including but not limited to use in brochures,
advertisements, websites and news outlet or press release articles. The images shall not include any identifying
information without Purchaser permission and the installation site shall not be disclosed beyond the type of
establishment (such as “Retail Store,” “Distribution Center,” or such other general terms), the city and state.

154  Enforcement of Confidentiality Obligation. Each Party agrees that the disclosing Party would be
irreparably injured by a breach of this Article 15 by the receiving Party or its Representatives or other Person to whom

the receiving Party discloses Confidential Information of the disclosing Party and that the disclosing Party may be
entitled to equitable relief, including injunctive relief and specific performance, in the event of any breach of the
provisions of this Article 15. To the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, such remedies shall not be deemed
to be the exclusive remedies for a breach of this Article 15, but shall be in addition to all other remedies available at
law or in equity.

15. INDEMNITY.
16.1 Indemnity. Subject to Article 12, each Party agrees that it shall indemnify and hold harmless the

other Party, its permitted successors and assigns and their respective directors, officers, members, shareholders and
employees (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all Losses incurred by such Indemnified

Page 16 of 26



Parties to the extent arising from or out of any injury to or death of any Person or loss or damage to property of any
Person to the extent arising out of negligent, grossly negligent or willful conduct of an Indemnifying Party or its
employees, officers, agents, contractors or representatives; provided, neither Party shall be required to reimburse or
indemnify any Indemnified Party for any Loss to the extent such Loss is due to the negligence, grossly negligent or
willful conduct of any Indemnified Party.

16. INSURANCE.
17.1 General.

17.1.1. ForeFront Power Insurance. ForeFront Power shall maintain the following insurance
coverages in full force and effect throughout the Term either through insurance policies or acceptable
self-insured retentions: (a) Workers’ Compensation Insurance with coverage limits in accordance
with Applicable Law, (b) Commercial General Liability Insurance with coverage limits of not less
than $2,000,000 general aggregate, $1,000,000 per occurrence, and (c) automobile insurance with
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. Additionally, ForeFront Power shall carry special
form (“all risk™) property insurance, with coverage limits equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the
replacement cost of the System. In the event of damage or destruction to the System or any portion
thereof, all property insurance proceeds shall be used and applied to restoration of such damage or
destruction.

17.1.2. Purchaser Insurance. Purchaser shall maintain the following insurance coverages in full force
and effect throughout the Term: (a) Workers Compensation Insurance with coverage limits in
accordance with Applicable Law and (b) Commercial General Liability Insurance with coverage
limits of not less than $2,000,000 general aggregate, $1,000,000 per occurrence. Purchaser may
satisfy the Purchaser’s insurance obligations by policies of insurance issued by a commercial insurer
or through a Joint Powers Authority to which the Purchaser is a member.

17.2 Certificates of Insurance. Each Party, upon request, shall furnish current certificates evidencing that
the insurance required under Section 17.1 is being maintained. Each Party’s insurance policy provided hereunder
shall contain a provision whereby the insured agrees to give the other Party thirty (30) days’ written notice before the
insurance is cancelled or materially altered.

17.3 Additional Insureds. Each Party’s insurance policy shall be written on an occurrence basis and shall
include the other Party as an additional insured as its interest may appear.

17.4 Insurer Qualifications. All insurance maintained hereunder shall be maintained with companies
either rated no less than A- as to Policy Holder’s Rating in the current edition of Best’s Insurance Guide (or with an
association of companies each of the members of which are so rated) or having a parent company’s debt to
policyholder surplus ratio of 1:1.

17. MISCELLANEOUS.

18.1 Integration; Exhibits. The Agreement, together with the Exhibits and Schedules attached t